The Constitution of the Health Law Society at The University of Akron School of Law

Article I – Name

The official name of this organization shall be the "Health Law Society."

Article II - Purpose

The purpose of this organization is to provide law students and other interested parties with an opportunity to expand their awareness of headthed issues and their impact on the law. The organization will provide its members with a chance to interact with students, faculty members, legal practitioners, and health care professionals who share similar interest in health law.

Article III – Membership

- A. Those eligible for membership include law students, faculty, undergraduate students, administration, and alumni of the University of Akron School of Law, as well as health care professionals.
- B. Membership will consist of the following types:
 - 1. A voting member is defined as a member who is enrolled at the University of Akron School of Law during the applicable academic year. Voting membership may be revoked in accordance with section B of article VIII.
 - 2. A nonvoting member is defined as any member who is not a voting member.
- C. To retain active membership status, each member will be required to pay annual membership dues of \$30.00.

Article IV – Officers

- A. Officer positions in this organization shall include, at a minimum, a President, Vice President, Treasurer, and Secretary.
- B. The powers and duties of the officers shall include:
 - 1. The President shall have the following powers and duties:
 - a. Maintaining order in therganization and at member and officer meetings;
 - b. Delegating responsibilities to other members of the organization;
 - c. Appointing committees and chairpersons for those committees;
 - d.
 - f. Casting the deciding vote in the event of a tie during an officer election; and
 - g. Deciding the amount of dues required.

- 2. The Vice President shall have the following powers and duties:
 - a. Assisting the President in all duties so delegated;
 - b. Taking requests from members for activities and meeting topics;
 - c. Arranging and overseeing fundraising efforts, unless a committee is established for that purpose; and
 - d. Serving in place of the President in the event of the President's absence or impeachment at the time of a meeting or activity.
- 3. The Treasurer shall have the following powers and duties:
 - a. Financial bookkeeping;
 - b. Overseeing all financial operations of the organization, including, but not limited to, collection of dues, depositing of money, and arranging payments in accordance with University regulations and staff;
 - c. Reporting available funds, costs of activities, and results of fundraising efforts at memb**an**d officer meetings;
 - d. Applying to the University for EAF funds to be deposited or withdrawn for allocated activities.
- 4. The Secretary shall have the following powers and duties:
 - a. Taking and posting minutes from member and officer meetings;
 - b. Coordinating and conducting voting procedures;
 - c. Assisting the President in coordinating activities;
 - d. Maintaining the annual registration of the organization with the Office of Student Development; and
 - e. Maintaining a current list of members, voting and nonvoting.
- C. Except where the charter members of this organization appoint officers for the 200708 academic year, officers must be elected with the following requirements:
 - 1. To qualify to be an officer, a student must be enrolled in the law school and must pay dues, if required of voting members, for the term of office.
 - 2. Nomination of voting members for officer positions will be accepted for annual election by email from any person to the President prior to the final member meeting of the year, to be held no earlier than five weeks prior to the end of the spring semester. Nominations may also be made in person by any attendee at the final member meeting of the year.

- 6. All terms of office shall be from the date a candidate is electretid the date of the last member meeting during the next academic year when the next year's officers are electret cept as set forth in section D of this Article.
- D.

m0.004Dn (t)- pn sccTw diAihi

rticle2 y daT*-4 W (u4 (e n)-4nn)-4 (d)]

А

didtd (A)2 (-4 I)-6 x->>B(>>B-1.154 Td [(d)4ar)-[(Oo)166 >>BDC -0.002 Tc 0.002 48y -6.53 -1.152

ï?< ï=¢ÄöJO2 "j-]£į &M Nó¢q"d &¤Úó & A TÝJÑ]¬O1ì´Ú⁻0 @ M₦A,ó⁻=¢nÝ́Od¤ó!"j-]£į ĺ`dd

Faculty Advisor. The President may cast an additional vote in the event of a tie.

- C. The term of office for the Faculty Advisor will be from the time of final approval to the end of that academic year. Upon approval by the Faculty Advisor, the President, and the Dean, the term shall be renewed on a yearly basis.
- Article VII Rules or Organization Procedures
 - A. Attendance at meetings and activities is not required of anyone, with the following exceptions:
 - 1. All officers, including the President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer, must attend all member meetings or activities.
 - 2. Unexcused, repetitive absences by an officer may subject that officer to impeachment proceedings for violation of subsection 1 of section A of this article. The President shall decide whether an absence is excused. If the President is absent, then the Vice President shall decide whether his or her absence is excused. If both the President and Vice President are absent, then the present voting members shall decide whether their absences are excused.
 - B. In the event the Faculty Advisor is not present at a meeting, he/she must be served with a transcript or the minutes of the meeting. The Secretary will be responsible for this task.
 - C. In order to conduct business, a quorsimall consist of more than fiftpercent of the voting members/oting shall not take place without a quorum. Meetings or activities where no voting occurs need not include a quorum.
- Article VIII Finance
 - A. The President, under the advisement of the officers of the organization, shall set the dues, if any, for membership to the organization.
 - B. If any dues for membership to the organization are required, such dues shall be paid by the last day of the semester in which the individual became a member in order for that individual to remain a voting member of the organization.
 - C. The organization may receive other sources of funding, including from the university, donations, and fundraising.
 - D. The Health Law Society shall manage its own finances in accordance with the rules and regulations prescribed by the University of Akron.

Article IX – Amendments

- A. Any individual may propose an amendment to this constitution by serving such a proposal upon the President.
- B. At the President's discretion, a meeting may be held, open to, at the least, all voting members, whereby discussion of the proposed amendment may take place followed by a vote. Only at such a meeting and a vote of at least two thirds majority of voting members present, and approval by the law faculty, may a proposed amendment be accepted and adopted.

Article X – Nondiscrimination Clause

The Health Law Society shall not discriminate, consistent with federal and state laws, on the basis of race, creed, national origin, ancestry, gender, age, handicap, veteran status, or sexual orientation in the selection of its members or in its programs.

Article XI – Student Life Clause

The Health Law Society shall maintain a current registration form, including a list of officers, their addresses, the name of the Faculty Advisor, and the most recently amended constitution with the Department of Student Life and the Office of the Assistant to the Dean for Internal Affairs at the School of Law.

Ratification: 15 February 2023